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CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. Committee of the Whole meeting for June 28, 2005 is now in session. For
the record, we have in attendance Members Pontanilla, Hokama, Mateo, and Anderson. Excused are
Members Carroll, Johnson, Tavares, and Kane.
Good morning, Members, we have a full agenda. For our slate today ... before we proceed, we would
like to give the public the opportunity to testify on any of our agenda items today. Chair would like to
go over some ground rules first. When you come up and testify, you will be given three minutes to
testify, with one minute to conclude, and we ask that you state your name for the record and any
organization that you may be representing. And please turn off all cell phones and pagers so as not to
disrupt our proceedings today here in the Chambers.
So at this point, the Chair would like to call up our first testifier for our agenda for the 28th . We have
Bill Harding. Would you please come up to the lectern. After Mr. Harding, Cliff Kunkel will be next to
testify.

. .. BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
MR. HARDING: Good morning, Mr. Chair-CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. HARDING: --and Council. Thank you very much for the opportunity to be here. We have submitted a
letter to you that lists all the salient points. This is pertaining to the proposed changes to the Fire Code
Ordinance. I would just like to state that we're in total agreement with the adoption of the State Fire
Code. We think that's a good thing. We only have some concerns about the one paragraph that we
mentioned in the letter, and those have to do with the restricting central monitoring for alarm systems to
the State of Hawaii.
And unless there are any questions, I, 1'd, we just wanted to get that on the record.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sir, can you state your name for the record.
MR. HARDING: Bill Harding, Central or excuse me ... Security Tech, LLC.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, do you have any questions for the testifier? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry, Mr. Harding?
MR. HARDING: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for being here. Could you tell me how it, how this would be, if
this was enacted the way it's proposed, how it would be any different than what it is right now?
MR. HARDING: What it is right now is there are dedicated central monitoring stations on the mainland that
are open to any independent alarm dealer. It's basically a, an outsourcing operation. We outsource our
monitoring to a mainland station. If this ordinance is enacted, it would restrict monitoring to Hawaii
only. The only monitoring stations in Hawaii are on Oahu, and they're proprietary. They're owned by
competitors. That would be a big difference.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so now the monitoring stations that are used on the mainland, they
provide a service that's just as well as the one that is available on Oahu?
MR. HARDING: Definitely. They're all regulated by UL and by the NFPA, National Fire Protection
Association. They all have to adhere to those standards. Electronically, we're just as close to the
mainland as we are to Oahu. In other words, when you pick up the phone and make a call, you get
through just as fast. I believe one of the concerns that the Fire Chief may have is during peak periods,
the telephone circuits are subject to being overloaded. Our research with Hawaiian Telcom indicates
that the chances of the circuits being overloaded between here and Oahu are equal to the ones that are
being overloaded between here and the mainland. So there's no real advantage.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so currently your company uses-MR. HARDING: A mainland monitoring station.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
business?

And so if we changed it, it would essentially put you guys out of

MR. HARDING: It would come real close, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you, Mr. Harding.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Harding.
MR. HARDING: Yes, sir.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to what you just mentioned regarding the traffic between the
neighbor islands, as well as the, from the mainland to Hawaii, is there a possibility or did you folks ever
take a look as far as dedicated service?
MR. HARDING: By dedicated, you mean like a internet line?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Not so much an internet line, but a circuit that goes from--the way I
understand, your system goes to the mainland and back.
MR. HARDING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For each of the islands that are on your system, that a dedicated service
line from each of the island to your Oahu system, a dedicated line to the mainland and coming back to
Hawaii with another dedicated line, such that you don't have to compete with the rest of the nation.
MR. HARDING: That's certainly a possibility. All monitoring stations, including the ones on Oahu, use the
POTS, plain old telephone system, which is their, or the, the same lines that you use in your home.
There are radio, radio telemetry techniques that could be used on the mainland. There is satellite
communications there, and if dedicated lines are available, that's certainly a possibility. That's
something we would consider.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Just to let you know, I used to work for the phone company-MR. HARDING: Ah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: --and with dedicated lines, then as far as having any servicing, you may
have some service interruption because the lines may go bad.
MR. HARDING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: But you don't have to cornpete-MR. HARDING: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: --everybody else.
MR. HARDING: Right. Yeah, that, you know, that's definitely something we, we would consider, and we
would gladly work with the, with the County on implementing that.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Pontanilla. Committee Members, any other questions for the
testifier? Seeing none, thank ... oops, sorry. Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sorry, I just have one more question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In your letter, you're saying ... what are the implications of this proposed
restriction with regards to the Interstate Commerce Act? Our attorneys are currently researching this.
Can you maybe add a little bit more why there is a concern regarding Interstate Commerce?
MR. HARDING: Right, if, it, if it could be viewed as a form of protectionism to give preference to a, an
Oahu-based company over a mainland-based company, it might be at odds with the Interstate Commerce
Act. It was, that point was raised to me by another, another person in our company, and I just checked
with our attorneys to see what their reading on it is. Because we were given such late notice on this, on
these proposed changes, the attorneys have not had a chance to put it on their agenda yet. We should
have that answer back in about two weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When did you find out about this?
MR. HARDING: We initially found out about it through a client that was informed that it would no longer be
legal to monitor alarm accounts outside of Hawaii. When the client came to me with that, I immediately
started researching, and I called the Fire Chief's office, and his Secretary informed me that they were
proposed changes. So then about two weeks ago, we finally get a copy of the proposed changes and
that's the reason for the letter.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, Mr. Harding, would you happen to know how many other security
companies on Maui this might affect?
MR. HARDING: Just offhand, I know of three others.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
MR. HARDING: You're welcome.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Any other questions for the testifier? Seeing none, thank
you very much, Mr. Harding.
MR. HARDING: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify is Cliff Kunkel to be followed by Leslie Couch. And prior to Mr. Kunkel
coming up to the lectern, the Chair would like to recognize the presence of staff, Analyst
Richelle Kawasaki and Committee Secretary Clarita Balala, as well as J.D. Kim from the Corporation
Counsel's Office. Good morning, sir.
MR. KUNKEL: Good morning. Thank you, Mr., Mr. Chairman and Council. My name is Cliff Kunkel, and I
work for Security Tech, LLC, also. I just ... Bill is more of technical arm of our company, but I just
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wanted to thank you for the opportunity to get this information out to you folks, and if there's any other
questions I can answer. But just wanted to please ask that you would consider the points on this letter.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Kunkel. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you. Next to testify is Leslie Couch to be followed by Douglas Halbert.
MS. COUCH: Good morning, Mr. Chair and Council Members. Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
Rather than go through all the points that we have listed ... and I apologize. I am here representing
Security Tech. And rather than reiterate what we have in our letter, I would like to just request that
since I know that this is a concern for the Fire Department--and I certainly understand their concern
about being able to respond to fires, being able to reduce false alarms, being able to understand
phonetically, you know, if someone calls in with a street because the Hawaiian names sometimes are a
little bit complex. What I would like to request is, as opposed to just passing this thing at this time, is to
allow a bit more of a community input to bring the security companies, the Fire Department, the
telephone company together and see if we can work out something that would be fair and equitable for
everyone because we did not have any kind of input on this at all. And obviously it's going to affect us
tremendously, as well as other security companies. And our request that if we could get together as a
community and work it out, that it, it would be better than to pass something that may cut some security
companies off at the knees and give a business advantage to other security companies. And does anyone
have any questions? I'd be happy to answer them.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Couch. Committee Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you.
MS. COUCH: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Next to testify we have Douglas Halbert, and Mr. Halbert is the last person to have signed
up for testimony today. The Chair will offer the public one last opportunity to sign up and testify on any
of our agenda items today. Good morning, Mr. Halbert.
MR. HALBERT: Good morning, Mr. Chair. My name is Douglas Halbert. I'm the Quartermaster for VFW
Post 3850, which holds its meetings on a site in Kihei, the site about which we are concerned this
morning. Today you're being asked to accept a piece of property ceded to the County of Maui by
Governor Lingle's Executive Order. I and my fellow comrades who are here in support of, or I and my
fellow comrades who are members of Wilbert Wah Hu Tom Post 3850 of the Veterans of Foreign Wars
of the United States are here to express our support for this action.
For those of you who may not be familiar with the property, I've brought photos of the property. A
street view and a view toward the shore. The property is located at 2502 Ulunui Road, Kihei. If I may; I
would like to provide just a little history. This property was unmaintained and overgrown with kiawe
and underbrush just as the property to the west of us is today.
In the 1970s, the VFW entered into an agreement with the Department of Land and Natural Resources to
clean up and maintain this property in exchange for the right to erect a building for meeting purposes
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and provide a venue for community service activities. The members of VFW went about removing the
underbrush, planting different trees, planting lawns and cleaning up the general area.
They acquired a surplus barracks from the Naval Air Station at Puunene, which was moved to the site
and turned into a clubhouse, as you see in the pictures, which I provided to you. The VFW has
continued to maintain this property at no expense to the State nor the County, and we are looking
forward to entering into a formal agreement with the County of Maui, which will allow us to continue
our occupancy of this property.
It is our commitment to the community to continue to make this venue available for use by other

veterans organizations, Boy Scout troops, Cub Scout packs, Girl Scout troops, elementary school reef
walk programs, church groups, and other non-profit organizations. The VFW, through its fundraising
efforts, such as our Spring Luau and our Veterans Luau in the fall, generates the funds to support the
care of this property. Having just finished our budget analysis, I can tell you that the VFW spends
$8,000 a year for such things as water, refuse service, lawn fertilizer and general maintenance of the
property. We also spent $l,000 a year on a $1 million liability insurance policy with the County, with
the County of Maui already named as an additional insured.
In summary, we wish to encourage the Council to accept this property from the State of Hawaii,
Department of Land and Natural Resources, and then request that the current administration be
responsible for the management of --pardon me--and then request that the current administration
responsible for the management of this property enter into a long-term, low-cost lease with the VFW,
which will allow the VFW members to continue serving the community at this venue.
I thank you for allowing me to make our thoughts known.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Halbert. Committee Members, questions for the testifier? Seeing
none, thank you very much, Mr. Halbert.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR MOLINA: Oh, I'm sorry. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for being here.
MR. HALBERT: Thank you for allowing me to be here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you charge for the Boy Scouts and other people to use the venue?
MR. HALBERT: We charge a nominal fee to cover the cost of electricity, refuse service, water and, and
maintenance of the property. But it is not equal to what we charge to ... a commercial operation, such
as a wedding or something like that. But we do ask that they donate something to the Post, although we
have also given the property for absolutely nothing in those cases where the organization just could not
come up with any donation.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and so you do rent the venue out to commercial uses?
MR. HALBERT: Yes, we do.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so what would you charge for a wedding?
MR. HALBERT: Two hundred dollars for the day, plus a $50 deposit to cover damages.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that includes all the grounds, the-MR. HALBERT: All the grounds, the entire venue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --building, the kitchen, everything.
MR. HALBERT: They, they have the run of the place, including our full commercial kitchen inside the
clubhouse.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so could you give me just kind of a general idea what percentage are
non-profit groups that use it as opposed to commercial.
MR. HALBERT: Veterans organizations, we reduce that to $100. And schools and so forth, we go as low as
$25.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so how many, how many, let's say, I'm assuming that usually it's
used during the weekends, but that's probably, I mean it's probably used during the week, too.
MR. HALBERT: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So let's just say, how often is it used over the year?
MR. HALBERT: 1, you're asking the right person because I happen to do the scheduling.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, good.
MR. HALBERT: And, generally, it is booked three out of the four weekends a month. And then there are
probably maybe five weekdays a month through, on an average, throughout the year that the hall is
booked. The weekday bookings usually are schools or Scout troops or something like that, and, of
course, as I said, if they can't afford to pay us anything, we still want them there. So, but they, they
have all been very understanding to the fact that we have our cost and have always provided us with a
donation.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great, so the, the revenues that you bring in are enough to cover the
expenses over the year?
MR. HALBERT: No.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
MR. HALBERT: No, we have to run our luaus. We have to run at least two luaus and actually we planned a
third one at least in order to bring in enough money. Because the VFW is a due-supported organization,
and our dues are relatively low. And we could not possibly support this property on just dues alone. So,
yes, we bring in revenue for the operation of the clubhouse and the property, but we have to work hard
to bring in enough to keep our head above water.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And you guys do a good job. The maintenance of the grounds is really
well done.
MR. HALBERT: Well, the men who have worked on it are all sitting back here. I, I get out there once in a
while, but there are others back here that are there every day working on the property. And they're
sitting back here in support of this project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you should be very proud. You do a good job. Thank you.
MR. HALBERT: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions for the testifier?
Seeing none, thank you very much, Mr. Halbert. And the Chair, on behalf of the Committee, would like
to thank and appreciate the members of the VFW who are gracing the Chambers with their presence
today. Thank you for your service to our country.
The Chair will offer one last opportunity for anyone to testify on our agenda items for today.
Committee Secretary, has there been anyone who signed up?
MS. BALALA: No.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Anyone in the gallery, for one last opportunity? Okay, seeing none, the Chair, with
no objections, will close testimony on our agenda items for today.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS .

. . . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . ..
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you very much, Members.
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COW-19

STATE FIRE CODE (C.C. No. 05-90)

CHAIR MOLINA: Let us proceed now with our first item of business, which is Committee of the Whole Item
19, the State Fire Code. The Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 05-90 from the Fire
Chief, transmitting a proposed bill entitled, "A Bill for an Ordinance Adopting the State Fire Code with
Certain Amendments Thereto." The purpose of the bill or proposed bill is to adopt the State Fire Code
with modifications.
And the Chair would like to call upon representatives from the Fire Department to please come on up
and have a seat and get comfortable. We have Chief Kaupalolo, as well as Captain Martin and Captain
English. Good morning, gentlemen.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Good morning.
MR. MARTIN: Good morning.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief, the Chair would like to ask if you could give us a brief overview of this matter for
the Committee's sake.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. KAUPALOLO: And good morning, Members of the Council. My name is Carl Kaupalolo, and I'm the
Fire Chief for the Department of Fire and Public Safety. Next to me, I have Captain Val Martin, who is
in charge of our Fire Prevention Bureau. Out in the audience there, I also have Deputy Fire Chief Neal
Bal who may be called upon as a technical resource, and also our Plans Review Examiner is Scott, Scott
English.
Thank you, and good morning, Chair and Members, again, of the Committee. I am pleased to present
you the State Fire Code with Maui County amendments. The State Fire Code, which is the 1997 edition
of the Uniform Fire Code was adopted by the State Legislature in November of 2001, making it possible
for the four counties to move ahead with the municipal adoption. The City and County of Honolulu and
the City and County of Kauai have completed and adopted their version of the State Fire Code. The
County of Hawaii has yet to adopt their version of the State Fire Code.
The Fire Code belongs to the people of Maui County, and I encourage public participation wherever
possible. The Fire Chief intends to adopt, or it is the intention of the Fire Chief to adopt a Fire Code that
maintains a high degree of safety. No Fire Code can and will address all situations related to fire safety;
however, much thought and effort was placed during the creation of these County amendments. Thank
you, Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Chief. Committee Members, do you have any questions for the Chief
with regards to the Fire Code? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll yield.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. As the Members are looking over the Fire Code, the Chair just has one question.
The Fire Code that we're considering today was, I guess, completed in 1997. Can I ask why here we are
in 2005, only now we're considering it?
MR. KAUP ALOLO: Thank you, Chair. I'll have Captain Martin kind of expound on that for us.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Chief.
MR. MARTIN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Good morning.
MR. MARTIN: Members of the Committee. The Fire Code is created every three years--1997, 2000, 2003-2003 was the last edition that was published. We'll have one in 2006. The State Fire Council
recommends to the State Legislature what Fire Code that the State would like to follow, the State Fire
Council, the State Legislature should follow. There is a, there is a lag time. It's very difficult to adopt it
immediately after it's published. It was published in 1997. Jurisdictions take a look at it for a year,
make amendments. Some take two years, three years. So it's, you're always behind. It's hard to
immediately adopt it right after it's published. Most would like to take a look, sit back, look at other
jurisdictions on how they're coping with the adoption of the Fire Code. And, again, for us in the State,
we follow the State Fire Council and State Legislature and that's the Fire Code they decided to adopt.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Captain Martin. Committee Members, any questions? Before I entertain
questions from the Committee Members, Corporation Counsel, do you have any comments with the
proposed Fire Code?
MR. KIM: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I have no comment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Okay, Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Gentlemen, good morning. Essentially, the
State Fire Code versus the Uniform Fire Code is essentially more local control of establishing fire
procedures, processes and permitting and whatever else is involved with the Code. Is it more--I don't
want to use the word, but home-rule?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, Councilman Mateo, that's pretty much the gist of it. This would make it more, I
would say in your words, home-rule kind of a application versus a general application. That's would be
the appropriate-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And the different-- 11 -
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MR. KAUPALOLO: --understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: --the major difference between, between the Uniform Code versus the State
Code, what is the more significant areas of difference between both of 'em?
MR. MARTIN: Councilmember Mateo, the State Fire Code is the Uniform Fire Code. It's basically the same
document, except the State Fire Council and the State Legislature did make some amendments to that
that we need to follow. And then we actually make a second amendment to those, so the base of all
those editions or versions does come from the State, excuse me, does come from the Uniform Fire Code
and it has amendments along the way.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, then, then in the process of trying to establish the State Fire Code, did
the Department have any opportunity of meeting with, say, for example, testifiers that came up who run,
who run security-type businesses and had any discussion with them?
MR. MARTIN: The discussion on our current State Fire Code took place in '99 and 2000. The alarm situation
is not addressed in the State Fire Code. It's a County amendment that we decided to look at, and there's
history behind that. And there's a reason why we put it in there, and I could elaborate on it if you want
me to.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Please.
MR. MARTIN: About six years ago, we had a situation in Honolulu. It was Mother's Day. The phone lines
were all tied up, and the mainland connections couldn't be made to Hawaii. There were some
emergencies that took place during that time. The Fire Prevention Bureau in Honolulu put together an
amendment several months after that and successfully passed it in front of the City and, City Council
with no opposition. Their rule is more strict. You have to be located on the island of Oahu. We've
decided that that could be a problem for us here also, if it happens on another Mother's Day or at any
other time. So we decided to at least bring it up for discussion, put it in the Fire Code and I'm glad it
came up. I think we do need to meet or discuss how this needs to be addressed. It is a problem. We do
not have the resources to address the industry side of it, so we're really dependent on, you know, people
that are experts in this field to show us the communication media that is dependable. But, as of right
now, we're going with history and history has showed that the lines can be blocked. So we are
concerned about that.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Mateo. Member Pontanilla followed by Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Earlier I provided some information to one of the
testifiers in regards to the communication lines. Have the Department ever thought about having
dedicated circuits to an alarm company--can be within the State of Hawaii or can be on the mainland-such that that circuit is basically for the Fire Department?
- 12 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 28,2005

MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Councilman Pontanilla. You know, I think the thought is great. I think that,
you know, is an opportunity for both sides to look at it. I'm not sure currently if the Fire Code does
address it in that particular sense, but I think that's the intent. Just to reiterate what, you know, Captain
Martin mentioned, that those kinds of things do happen. And currently, my understanding talking with
our staff, we do have situations here that occur where phone lines or communications were a
consideration. And they either hampered or did not even allow us to be informed that certain situations
were occurring. So I think this is a real good point to discuss and share with the public that we do have
some concerns out there, and it's important that we realize that the Department is really looking at the
fire and life safety for its community and its visitors here on the island. And that would be our whole,
. our main focus in trying to get this through. As you heard from Captain Martin, Honolulu City and
County, they're a metro-fire, and they also are concerned with not being able to respond in a timely
fashion or not even be able to be notified about any kinds of fire emergency or life safety emergencies
going on.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, and the only reason why I bring it up is because of certain special
occasions, you know, you're going to have overload on phone line circuits. And if you do have a
dedicated cir. .. , circuit that is strictly dedicated to the Fire Department--can be for Maui County, can be
for the State, ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... those type of situation, you know, you wouldn't become
competing with everybody else, yeah, and if that thing can be explored. I like the idea, you know, you
monitor here on the island, which would be good if you do have a company that does the monitoring for
you. But if you don't, then, you know, if the monitoring company is on Oahu, then I would highly
suggest dedicated circuits leaving this island or Molokai and Lanai also. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. I have several different questions. And I'm
hoping that maybe this issue on monitoring could be discussed with all parties that it affects before we
adopt anything. This is basically, it's, it's adopting a Code, but it's, as you read it, it really reads as rules
and regulations that will affect people, so I'm hoping that they get a chance to have a discussion with the
Department regarding these changes. I would note, without getting in, into, into that issue any further
right now that there's also a requirement that--and this is, this is a requirement that is not part of the
Code. This is something that's being added by the Department. When required by the chief--Members,
this is under, it's on Page 28 at the top, under Section 1114. When required by the chief, a booster
antennae or similar device shall be installed in a building to maintain radio communication for
emergency personnel. Could someone explain that to me further where that requirement is and how it's
different from what's currently required?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Councilperson Anderson. And good morning, again. That's a real good
question. Mainly this comes about because of our fire operations kinds of concerns we have with our
people that actually responding to the fires. These, these kinds of devices would allow us to ensure
better communications inside of buildings or in areas that we're, we're limited with receiving good
communications between fire fighters or the commander and the fire officer at the scene. These kinds of
devices help us to be able to maintain that, that vital communications between the crews.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then if you found like a dead spot or a, you know, an area where
you're not getting adequate communication, this then would allow you to go to a building owner in the
area and say, would you please allow us to put up an antennae or are you going to require them to put up
the antennae?
MR. KAUPALOLO: The appliance will be determined on what the need is there, whether it's an antennae or
it's a device that allows us to have better communication. It could be a booster, or it could be a system
there that, you know, we can just enhance. But that's exactly the point of having that there that's going
to allow us .. , We do have certain places that we are very aware of within our County that we have
very weak signal or probably very limited signal. I won't say we don't have any, but limited signals.
And these are the areas that the Fire Prevention Bureau has been able to target, as well as been informed
by the fire crews that go out there and work at this different fire scenes and find that they have some
limited kinds of communication at these sites.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then if, if the Chief ... it says, when required by the Chief. So would
the Chief then go to the building owner and say, can we put in this device or would you require the
building owner to do it? Whose expense would this be at?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I believe, for clarification, that's intent is to have that communication known to the
building owner, owners, that they would need to comply with this particular part of the Fire Code, if
determined by the Chief, which is normally done through the process of our Fire Prevention Bureau that
actually looks at it and the information received from our fire operations crews that these kinds of things
would and is a concern for us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So the building owner would have to pay for it?
MR. KAUPALOLO: That would be correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So maybe, maybe that should be clarified in this because it doesn't really
say. It just says when required by the Chief, and, you know, I can support the building owner paying for
it if, if it allows the building owner to have greater safety for his building. It just says, when required by
the chief, a booster antennae or similar device shall be installed in a building to maintain radio
communication for emergency personnel. But I think it needs to be spelled out in clearer terms who ...
just says, shall be installed. It doesn't say ... maybe we could add in, shall be installed at the expense
of the owner or in some way indicate who is responsible for doing that.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Yes, Member Anderson, I think, you know, that's a good suggestion for us to clarify that,
and we'd like to take a look at the wording that you suggest also and ourselves and make the appropriate
clarification on that section.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Okay, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, you have another question?
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I have quite a few, unless someone has a question on the same
item.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, if you don't mind, Member, can you yield?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, no. Fine.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. The Chair appreciates ... Member Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Kind of confused right now. When I do look at
Section 114 [sic], Fire Department Communication, I'm assuming it's for the Department rather than for
a building owner. When I read this, a booster antennae, you know, will be installed, I guess to enhance
his communication with his employees out in the field. I don't know, maybe I'm wrong. But that's the
way I read it. So if the Department can clarify.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chair also acknowledges the presence of Deputy Chief Bal as well in our proceedings
today, Members. Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Councilmember Pontanilla, the cost for this, we intended to be a minimal cost to the property
owner. We don't expect it to be a large cost. There's only a handful of subjects that we put this in here
that we're concerned about. Their cost, we don't expect it to be large. Our main concern is the safety of
the firefighters and the safety of the public. There are some locations in the County, especially at the
large resorts where they go underground very long ways where we cease communications. No
communications at all. And we look at that as a very dangerous situation. And by putting some type of
device in there that would assist in the communication is very, very vital to our operations. And, again,
we can only come up with a handful of locations right now that need this. But we need something that
we can hang our hat on to go ahead and have something installed. As far as the cost, we look at it as
minimal, but that we would want the owner to provide, to provide, we will provide that service.
Hopefully they could meet us and it would benefit all of us. That, that's, that's how this came about.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:
businesses?

So this is for private buildings you're talking about?

Or private

MR. MARTIN: Basically, private buildings, businesses, large, large underground areas where communications
cease. Long distances where it could be a danger.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Pontanilla. Member-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson, you-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think he's still on the same subject.
CHAIR MOLINA: --okay. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Is this part of the coordinated effort with Police? The Council has
appropriated millions of dollars to upgrade the 800 megahertz system, so is this a coordinated effort with
Police and, let's say, ambulance response as part of an overall emergency response program?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Councilman Hokama. No, it's not, and the reason I say that is because the, I
guess the Department looked at it in the standpoint that we address how we could improve on these fire
operations communications issues that were coming up. These issues that we are addressing are actually
existing issues out there at existing occupancies or facilities. And in the '88 Fire Code, it really doesn't
address that, and one reason for us placing this in the Code is to allow us to bring it up for discussion in
the public also, but also to be able to address the issue out there that the Department feels has not been
addressed in the past. This particular measure here or this particular section would allow us to do that.
To go to these facilities and work with them and say, you know, we can't really have adequate or good
communications in your facility. This antennae or this particular booster would, would facilitate that
kind of good communication that we need out there. And part of it, I think if I want to expound on your
original question, part of it is we are working towards that to ensure that we do have a, I would say, a
collaborative effort with the other emergency services to do, bring to full circle, I guess, this particular
issue. It may not, it may be just isolated to fire and it may not be, but I think we are working on that, but
that's on another program that we trying to address, which is to bring forth all of these kinds of concerns
we have in a timely manner. But this one here, particularly, it's an existing on going and this, this would
allow us now to address it in the Fire Code and be able to take care of it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Well, I think you need to have more discussion with the property owners
that have, you have concerns with, Chief. I would ask that ... what is your Commission doing to assist
you in this manner? Are they aware? Have they gone back to like the Lanai Commission or the
Molokai Commission or taken this back to their respective islands for discussions with those that have
facilities that may be in need of upgrade? Or is your Commission not involved at all with this update of
the Code?
MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you, Councilman Hokama. The Commission is aware that we are bringing forth
this, the amendment to the Fire Code for adoption of the 1997. In all fairness to the Commission,
though, I don't believe, there, there are specific issues that they are aware of. I'm sure they're aware of
in general. Some of the islands mayor may not be affected by this particular Section in the Fire Code.
If I could pinpoint a little more specifically, it'll probably be mainly for Maui County and mainly so
because of the occupancy group that's going to be involved with this particular application.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Why I bring it up because on Lanai we have water shafts that serves the
general community with potable drinking water, and I'm very sure your radio system is not going to be
able to get a signal couple of hundred feet below the surface in a water shaft.
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MR. KAUPALOLO: I thank you again, Councilman Hokama. If I could maybe just share with you a little bit
what we have been able to do within the last year, and I thank you for allowing us a lot of the funding to
allow us to do that. We've been able to have what we call a hard cable system that'll allow us to have
direct communications with our people should they need to enter these deep well shafts. We've also
been able to continue the application program of what we call confined space, which is also OSHA and
NIOSH and HIOSH requirement that we do fulfill. We have been able to do that in light of we haven't
been able to bring forth a lot of this information we feel we should, but you're correct. We do need to
have that, and at this point in time, we do have these kinds of equipment with us. We are starting to
complete our confined space program. We are sending more personnel to have that. That's available,
not only for Maui County, but for Lanai and Molokai as well.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, maybe a question for Corp. Counsel, please.
CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: It's on the same subject, Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Corporation Counsel.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: We permit certain towers to come up, whether it be Verizon or whatever its
new name--Hawaiian Telcom, Sprint, Cingular or AT&T. If the Department needs access to a tower
already existing for communication, emergency communication requirements since they mention
specific radio communication, don't we have the, some type of authority or power to attach required
emergency additions to those facilities?
MR. KIM: Mr. Chair-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I'm just looking at another way ... because we already have a network
system by these various companies countywide.
MR. KIM: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, maybe one company doesn't have the best overall system, but I'm
sure using whatever--Sprint and everybody else, Verizon and AT&T--maybe it satisfies, I'm not sure,
the Department's requirements. So we wouldn't need to build anything new. We'd just have to attach
on those existing facilities-MR. KIM: I believe at this point in time, the communications are adequate around the island with the Sprint
towers and those other devices that the County has allowed or allowed to be put in. However, under the
current radio system, within a structure, confined structure, not just open communication, if you're in a
building, particularly in an underground parking or in one of the center parts of a large concrete
building, the signals are lost. And that's what's been experienced in the City and County of Honolulu
with their high rises. The Police initially had a proposal and, but since they are not part of the Fire Code
or buil ... , any type of building code, we could not propose any code that would say the new building
structures being put up need to put in these types of devices to boost the signal. So if emergency
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personnel needs to enter the building, they're always in constant communication. The Fire Code is the
only Code for the emergency personnel in this respect. And so these boosters put onto the towers, I
believe we're already using the towers now with our 800-megahertz system.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. KIM: But this would not increase any signals into the building.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I understand. Chairman, I would ask that we consider maybe putting more
clarification language. I think the term by Corporation Counsel of confinement in certain type of
buildings helps bring some clarity because the language is quite broad right now and that a specific
consideration is for specific situation that the Chief and Corporation Counsel has made us aware of-CHAIR MOLINA: Okay-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: --and that would help us also.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, this is just for clarification. This is Page 28 of the proposed bill, Section 1114, Fire
Department Communication.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Staff, make note of that. Thank you. Any other questions, Committee
Members? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, just before I go on to another set of questions, when you said it's
not a large amount, can you define that more specifically in dollars what the cost might be? Because we
need to know that because we'll get the phone calls.
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, I definitely don't have a dollar amount in my head right now. I don't know
how much the devices, it'll cost on each independent installation. The way I interpret it is, is that most
of these facilities are multi, multi-million dollar buildings, large revenue, hundreds and hundreds of
guests, and they're, we're worried about their life safety. And I don't have a dollar amount, but I can't
imagine it being large enough where they won't consider it for their guests and life safety.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're, you're anticipating this will be primarily for resort areas? I
mean, it wouldn't be like a small business with a building that happens to be in a weak, weak zone? I
mean, I'm just trying to get a handle on, are we talking hundreds, or are we talking thousands of dollars?
MR. MARTIN: Our main concern is life safety. Whenever we have a facility with large amounts of people,
that's the one we're concerned about. We're not concerned about a dead spot in a building that houses
two people in an office or where, where we don't have a large gathering. Our main concern are places
where large amount of people gather, and we have no communication. That's our main concern.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. Okay, thanks. Yeah, Mr. Chair, I think, you know, further
clarification on this provision is needed so that everybody knows what the intent is. Since we're in that
Section, I'm just going to go on with a question on Page 30, under Section 5202.4.8, under Special Type
Dispensers. Without reading the whole provision, it appears that you're requiring that for--and please
correct me if I'm wrong because some of this language is hard to understand--approve special
dispensing systems, such as, but not limited to coin operated and remote pre-set types are allowed at
motor vehicle dispensing stations.
In reading this through, what it sounds like to me is that you're going to require gas stations that have
pumps where people can come in and self-dispensing. They dispense it themselves with their credit
card, that they are now going to be required to have a camera on these pumps that the attendant inside
can see. Is that correct?
CHAIR MOLINA: Department.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. If I may, I thank you, again, Councilperson Anderson. Thank
you. That is the intent. Maybe the, if I can share a little history in the back of that that they're, presently
there are attendants that for the public's service kinds of facilities, they have an attendant that normally
kind of monitors and oversees the operations so things go well there and, you know, kind of help with
the, you know, people filling up their gas. This particular issue here is addressing the safety. There's a
lot of, I think, times that which we've been aware of that things happen at the pumps, and people are not
aware. And the attendant is actually responsible for the operations and also the safety of the operations
there. In a lot of these kinds of facilities we have today at the service station, it's a multi-use. It has
become a convenience store, so people do want to go in and grab a quick soda or a hot dog or buy, you
know, something cold to drink. But they also leave their, their gas handle that's on to fill these kinds of,
you know, equipment there. So you have two kinds of conditions going on. You have one where
nobody's monitoring the filling of the tank, except the attendant. But if the attendant is not able to see
clearly where and what's going on at the various pumps, then it hinders the operation and it may become
unsafe at that point in time. These kinds of, I would say, visual cameras would allow them to have
complete visual of the operations and they could either shut off the pump should the gas start to
overflow because the, you know, person was not there. Or should it malfunction, they have that
observation there. Right now, we believe that's a serious issue for us if the attendant there does not have
any kinds of visual to address or mitigate the situation there. We've had times where people have left
their pump in the tank and just drove off. And without the attendants having these kinds of visuals to
stop that kind of operation or to even address it, you know, that would be just really, you know, very
hard for them to do.
These cameras are, they're not the, I guess the complete answer to, you know, addressing the fire safety
at the pumps, but they do, I believe in my understanding, will help to reduce them, if not completely,
you know, try to eliminate them from happening.
So these are just to help the attendants out there to get a better feel of what's happening at these local
pumps. And if you'll notice the location of where these attendants are, they're probably way up front so
they don't really get to see anything else that's going in the back of the pump areas.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, you know, I appreciate your intent with this, but I'm just
wondering how effective it would be in, in fact, as a monitoring device because the attendants in most of
these gas stations, they're busy with customers lining up their cashiers as well. So where are they going
to have the time to keep their eyes on the camera? Seems like there needs to be, if that's a real
concern ... I mean, what I see the cameras doing is giving you after-the-fact video, if there's an incident
that you can go back and see who was involved and what happened. I'm assuming these cameras would
also provide videotapes? Do you know if that's a fact? Because I do know that some stations currently
have cameras.
I mean, just having a camera is not like having another person who's dedicated to watching what's going
on, so, and I just see this as an additional expense that maybe people aren't aware of that's coming down
the line. And I'm just wondering if, if you have talked to the various station owners that would be
involved if ... what percentage of stations are we looking at that have to be fitted with cameras should
this pass?
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, I'd like to clarify the difference between open to the public and private.
We do have some filling sites on Maui where you can be a private member. This Section of the Code
would not apply to them. It's only ones that are open to the public. And for many, many years, the Fire
Code has required any filling station open to the public to have an attendant on duty to be in clear view
at all times. I know that sometimes they help customers selling items out of the stores. For us, that's
very hard to control. As long as there's a big picture window, they can see the gasoline operations, that
qualifies as complying with the Fire Code. We do have some situations where the attendant is not in
clear view of all the sites. This would allow them, actually give them an opportunity to still monitor the
area with the television camera, which it would meet compliance in the Fire Code if you do not have
direct view, but you would have the option of installing a camera, which may be cheaper than having to
remodel or set up somewhere else or however the station proprietor would want to set it up. We really
didn't make much modification. This is an existing Section in the Fire Code that has been there for
many years. What it does, it gives the television camera actually one more option for the proprietor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I see that that is the only amendment. Well, actually, you're also
saying that nobody under the age of 15 shall operate a fuel dispensing system. So that is also a change.
And then the television cameras. Do you know if this is, these amendments that you're putting in here,
are these required in Oahu or any other jurisdiction in the State?
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, the under age 15, that is a State law throughout. It's just reiterated here.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. But as far as television cameras, do you know if any other
jurisdiction in the State requires those?
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MR. MARTIN: I don't have the answer to that right now. I have read it before where it, it is allowable as
meeting compliance if you're not in direct view.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
MR. MARTIN: So our intent here was to just provide another option for the proprietor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you. If no Members have any questions on what I
just brought up, ... (CHANGE TAPE) ... I would like to move on.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Member Anderson. The Chair has just one question if you'll allow him,
Member Anderson. Members, make a note of Page 24, under heading of General, No. 1102.3.1,
Paragraph 1, underlined Fires for Cooking of Food. I thought this might be of interest to some people.
Many of us, of course, like to do our food preparation via the imu. And under this provision, for those
who may not be aware of it, it is now a requirement or had been a requirement that fires prior to the imu
being lit, 15 minutes at minimum, the Fire Department has to be notified. In the event of someone not
following this regulation, what type of penalties or fines are they subject to, if they don't notify the Fire
Department that they're going to be lighting an imu? Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Chair Molina, the Fire Code allows for a fine of up to $1,000 or six months in jail. We, we do
not take that stance, especially for a first-time violator. We like to educate, notify the violator of the
Codes. If it will be something that's continuous, then, of course, we're going to have to proceed with
legal matters, but the Fire Code does allow up to $1,000 fine and six months in jail.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Have you had any incidents related to an imu fire causing some other types of fires
in the past? I'm just curious as to why this has been inserted in the bill? Oh, I guess this probably came
from the Uniform Code, the State Uniform Code. Am I correct with that?
MR. MARTIN: Chair Molina, most of the imu fires, especially in residential areas become a smoke nuisance at
most. We've had very few where it, it caught fire to adjoining brush. But it's mostly a smoke issue.
And this is an existing, this is out of our current Fire Code. This is not something new. Many of, many
of these underlined items are in our existing Fire Code, but since we are adopting a total new one, the
underlined sections kind of jump out at you. But it's not necessarily something new.
CHAIR MOLINA: Have you had compliance from the public, though? Most people will call you up, let you
folks know that they're doing an imu or is it just, you know, people just sort of forget or bypass the Fire
Department to notify you folks?
MR. MARTIN: If you don't do an imu regularly, then those will not know the law or Code, and if we find out,
we try and educate them. Many of those that do imus, do it regularly and know and we do get a fair
amount of calls calling us, notifying us of imus that they will be lighting, sometimes well in advance.
Twelve hours ahead, eight hours ahead. I would say that we do get a fair amount of calls, and it helps
out. Saves the County time, money, when we don't have to go out there. We have contact, telephone.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for sharing that with us because this was some, I was unaware of this as well.
Thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Starting on Page 5, you have amendments that delineate fees
for inspection and for plan review processing. And I'm wondering if these fees are any different than
what currently exists. And if they do currently exist, where are they? Where are they delineated?
MR. KAUPALOLO: Councilperson Anderson. I'm going to have Captain Martin go ahead and expound on
that.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, I believe you're referring to Section 103.3.2.2. Is that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, and also .1 under General, there's also fees. Thirty dollars an hour
for plan review and then inspection fees. I'm just wondering if these fees currently exist, and if they do,
where are they in our Code.
MR. MARTIN: Member-CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin, go ahead.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, those fees currently do exist, and they are in our Maui County Fire Code
amendments here. We have changed some figures, and I could explain some of that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Please.
MR. MARTIN: We do allow for an expedition of plan review with an extra fee, as you have pointed out here.
That also currently exists in our current Fire Code. Moving down to 103.3.2.1 ... yeah, so it's $30 per
hour-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so that's-MR. MARTIN: --to expedite. And, again, that exists in our current-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're not raising the fees?
MR. MARTIN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thanks. I just wanted clarification on that.
MR. MARTIN: In fact, let me double check here. Yeah, it's not, it's not raised.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, great. Then I wanted to ask you, on Page 4, under Appeals, you
have delineated the Uniform Fire Code's process for appeals and inserted an amendment that requires
any person who desires to utilize materials or methods of construction, other than as specified by this
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Code, may apply to the administrative authority for approval. Any denial of such request may be
appealed to the Board of Code of Appeals, as provided in the County Code.
So the administrative authority, I'm assuming, would be the Chief or somebody in the Department,
correct? I'm sorry. That's on Page 4, Section 103.1.4.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief, Captain Martin, do you folks need a little more time to respond to the question? The
Chair's intent is to take a short recess in another minute or two if you need more time. As a matter of
fact, why don't we go ahead and do that, Members. There's been a lot of questions brought up about the
proposed bill. At this point, the Chair would like to give you a few moments to address your personal
needs and for the body's information, the Chair's intent is not to take any action on the bill today
because there have been a number of issues brought up. And at this point, if there are more, if you have
more questions, we do have a full agenda slate today, the Chair will be forwarding your questions to the
Department as well and would like to encourage the Department to work with the community on some
of the matters that have been brought up. So why don't we go ahead and take a short break.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, are we going to-CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --come back to this after our short break?
CHAIR MOLINA: We can do that. If you just have a couple more questions, but the Chair would like to move
on today.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, I do. And I have a few suggestions to make.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson. At this point, we'll take ... excuse me ... we'll take
a recess until 10:25 and we'll return to Item Number 19. Meeting in recess .. .(gavel) . ..

RECESS:

10: 15 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:27 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: .,. (gavel). .. Committee of the Whole meeting for June 28, 2005 is now back in session.
Thank you very much, Members, for that needed break. We last left off on Item Number 19, and we had
Member Anderson who had, I guess to continue her line of questionings and had to, wanted to make a
few comments. Prior to recognizing Member Anderson, again, the Chair would like to ask for your
consideration of, I guess, maybe spending just a couple more minutes on this matter and to move on
because we do have a full agenda. And the Chair's intention is, at this point, to tentatively schedule the
Fire Department to return on July 12 to address this issue on this proposed bill for the Fire Code.
So, at this point, the Chair would like to recognize Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'll try to be brief. I know you want to move
on, and since we will have this coming.back to us, I just want to clarify just a couple of things. On Page
19, under Section 903.2, Required Water Supply for Fire Protection, there is an amendment that reads,
"When Group R Division 3 or Group U occupancies more than seven ... all Group R Division 3 or
Group U occupancies more than 700 square feet in total area shall be within 500 feet of an approved fire
hydrant or standpipe as measured by an approved route. If the proposed building area has no water
supply for fire protection, the guidelines in NFPA 1142 shall apply." And then it goes on in Section
9034.2 [sic] to delineate specific fire flow and hydrant spacing requirements according to land use. Five
hundred gallons per minute and 500 feet spacing for Ag and so on. Members, this is on Page 19 and 20.
So I'm just wondering, are these provisions any different than what you currently have as a requirement
in the Code or not?
CHAIR MOLINA: Captain Martin.
MR. MARTIN: Member Anderson, going back to 903.2, Required Water Supply for Fire Protection, this came
about for persons living in rural areas that build a structure. If someone has a rural farm growing
flowers or however they, whatever they wanted to grow, they build a 500 square foot shed, legally
coming to the County for a permit, what the Fire Code requires is for that person to provide fire
protection for that shed. If you're in a rural area with nothing, that person may be required to spend
thousands of dollars to either put in a catchment system or bring in a tank.
What we're proposing here is, if you are going to build something that's more than 700 square feet, then
we're going to, we want that fire protection. If it's under 700 square feet, we have enough water in our
fire trucks to tackle something about that size, and what we're trying to do here is to prevent, of course,
a fire, but not overburden the owner of the parcel or project with exponential amount that he's going to
have to come up with. He or she's going to have to come up with to provide that fire protection. So
that's a bind that we fight with all the time, and we feel sorry for the applicant because it's such a small
structure. But that's what the law requires. So here we're trying to address that by allowing them to
build something under 700 square feet and not be required to provide fire protection because our fire
trucks carry adequate water to control something like that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So these parameters that you layout in these two sections, again, do they
currently exist in the Code or is this totally new?
MR. MARTIN: 903.2 does not currently exist in the Code, so that's why we're proposing it here. The 903.4.2
currently exists in the Code, except we are raising some of the gallons per minute amounts, which is not
substantial. There's other counties that their amounts are higher than ours. These flow amounts in
903.4.2 are not consistent throughout Hawaii. Each county establishes their own fire protection flow
rates. We did raise the agricultural from 250 gallons a minute to 500 gallons a minute.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so none of this would be retroactive, is that correct, for people who
already in rural areas have buildings without this kind of fire flow protection?
MR. KIM: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Proceed.
MR. KIM: That's correct. There are buildings that exist currently, or structures in the rural areas that do not
have ... historically, this type of fire protection. Historically, the Water Department took care of the"
water flow and you could sign a waiver for fire protection and comply with other conditions. However,
that, that portion of water flow was turned over to the Fire Prevention Bureau and the proposal came I
think two or three years ago. And now if you're adding on to your existing structure, you have to follow
the Building Code to supply adequate water or flow protection, water flow for your structure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, so say someone has, you know, five acres, and they have a home and
maybe an accessory dwelling and maybe a farm shed. And if they want to add another shed, then
they're going to be required to supply a standpipe or a fire hydrant every 500 feet to their property. Is
that correct?
MR. KIM: If the shed is a standalone and it's under five, under 700 square feet, then the answer is no. If the
shed is attached to any other existing dwellings and it becomes more than 700 square feet, the answer is
yes. Or they can retrofit I believe with sprinkler system.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, this concerns me because I've received as the Chair of the Water
Resource Committee, I've received several complaints from people who are being asked to do this.
They've lived on their property for years and years and years and they want to add another farm shed.
And they're being required, you know, $300,000 worth of pipes, and, and fire hydrants just so they can
add one little shed. So-MR. KIM: I'm going to yield to Lieutenant English.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If you can clarify that a little bit.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Lieutenant English.
MR. ENGLISH: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. You may have things a little ... I'll say, depends how the permit
goes through. I know the Water Department requires on a third structure that a fire flow be done on the
building, and if the fire protection on the street is not adequate to provide service to that building, they
are requiring you to bring in a six-inch water line, 300 yards, 3 miles away of fire protection. For me
what I review, I review only areas in a private water system where it's not served by County water. And
as far as for bringing in the hydrants, I only enforce that during a subdivision process. If it's an existing
land that somebody wants to build, their option is to put an on-site water tank for fire protection or fire
sprinkler their home. It's not, I'm not going to require them to bring, put in a whole new water system if
there was an existing property and they want to build on it. It's only when they decide to subdivide they
have to bring in the standards that we are trying to adopt.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So is this in, in consistency with the Water Department in the Building
Code, then?
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MR. ENGLISH: For Sections 903.4.2, what I do, I just follow the Water Supply standards that the County is
trying to adopt so we're on the same page. As far as if they're going to do an agricultural subdivision,
our standards are the same for what the Water Department enforce and what I enforcing or the Fire
Department is enforcing. So whichever, their own private water or County water, they're still going to
get the same requirement. That's why we're moving the numbers up to match what the Water standards
are going to be adopted.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, just, just quickly, Mr. Chairman, for clarification, make sure I
understand what you're saying. These Water Supply requirements in this Fire Code only apply to the
private subdiv ... , or private water systems and that all the others are under the County Water Code?
MR. ENGLISH: Correct, the ones that I enforce is only on the private water sector.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson. Members, at this point, if there are no objections, the
Chair would like to move on because we do have a full agenda today and the Chair's intent is to defer
the matter. A lot of, many interesting issues have been brought up, and as I mentioned earlier, the
Chair's intention is to bring the Department back on July 12 to discuss this proposed bill. So if there's
no objections, the Chair will defer this matter.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you. Sorry ... Corporation Counsel.
MR. KIM: Before we went on break, I believe there was a question regarding Section 103.1.4, Page 4, by
Member Anderson regarding the Board of Code Appeals and who would be the administrative authority
for approval.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Mr. Kim, proceed and respond to the question.
MR. KIM: This matter is before the ... basically, if there's alternative building materials that a homeowner
wants to use or someone constructing a building wants to use, they have to go before the Planning
Department or the Public Works. I'm sorry, Public Works. And the Board of Code Appeals fall under
them. The initial section that you see on appeals, that was put in and then Board of Code Appeals was
then established. With adoption of this Code, it just directs the person to the Board.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you.

ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion. (Excused: DK, RC, JJ, & CT)
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COW-IS

DEDICATION OF PROPERTY FOR A VETERANS CENTER (C.C. No. 05-85)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, at this point, there's been a request to move up Item Number 15, which is
the dedication of property for a Veterans Center in Kihei, and the Chair would like to ask for your
consideration of that matter. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Members.

COW-19

STATE FIRE CODE (C.c. No. 05-90)

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Before we go on, I just wanted to ask if maybe by the time they come
back to us in July that they could have maybe met with some of these security system companies and
have a dialogue with them and see if something could be worked out. That would be helpful.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chief Kaupalolo.
MR. KAUPALOLO: Thank you, Member Anderson. We will take that under consideration and try to meet
with the parties concerned. In closing, I'd like to just thank, on behalf of the Chair and Members of the
Committee, in allowing us the opportunity to be here· and to, I guess this is just the first of many
meetings that we'll probably have adopting the Fire Code. Thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Chief.

COW-IS

DEDICATION OF PROPERTY FOR A VETERANS CENTER (C.C. No. 05-85)

CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, next item for consideration is the dedication of property for a Veterans
Center out in Kihei. Committee is in receipt of County Communication No. 05-85 from the Mayor,
transmitting a proposed resolution entitled, "Accepting Dedication of Real Property Situated at Kihei,
Wailuku, Maui, Hawaii, from the State of Hawaii Pursuant to Section 3.44.015, Maui County Code."
The intent of the proposed resolution is to accept the dedication of land comprised of approximately
0.398 acres and located in Kihei, Maui for a Veterans Center and community support activities as
provided for by State Executive Order Number 4087. And from the Mayor's Office, we have
Mr. Don Couch, who is the Executive Assistant to the Mayor. Mr. Couch, good morning. I'd like to ask
if you could give the Committee a brief overview of this matter.
MR. COUCH: Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Chair and Members. The Veterans of Foreign Wars
Post ... I don't remember what post it is, but they've had that property for about 30, 40 years and
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they've been working on it regularly as you heard a testifier mention. They came to us and asked if, in
order for them to make the building better, do some upgrades to the building and actually have official
use of the building for more than a month at a time, if we could ask the Governor for the land and then
lease the land for long-term use so that they can make modifications and upgrades to the building with
the knowledge that they're going to be able to use it the next month and the next year. So we said, sure,
we'd talk about it.
We talked with the Governor's Office and the DLNR and they said, yeah, they'd love to have somebody
who's there for long term in order to keep the area up because they have done--and I think most of the
Members have been to the facility. And just as it is now, it's still a really nice facility and they'd like to
upgrade it a little bit and also use it for community groups, such as Boy Scouts, Girls Scouts and
whatnot. Allow them to use it at a nominal fee. So we, we pursued that and the DLNR agreed with us
and sent us, sent the Governor an Executive Order and the Governor signed it and sent it down and
asked us to accept the land. And especially for, and it does say, "for veteran services and community
support activities." A Veterans Center and community support activities. So that's why we're here
today.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Couch. Committee Members, questions for Mr. Couch. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just quickly, Chairman. I think this is a very good request to us this
morning. Regarding Exhibit 1, my first question would be on the requirement upon termination of this
agreement, the restoration of the premises to a satisfactory and acceptable condition. Is that clear on
what is expected of us because I'm sure that we would then pass on that same consideration to the
VFW?
MR. COUCH: Correct. This is standard language they, they always send in an Executive Order. Typically,
what that refers to is a situation where we're going to make a big mess of the area and then if they want
to take it back we would have to clean it up. In this case, the area, it--and then, again, this is my own
opinion--the area is going to be in much better shape than it was when we took it over. For instance, the
building now is kind of old and the area is going to be upgraded. So as far as the Administration, we
would, we would certainly say that any improvements would be better than when they got the land. So
this is normal verbiage that the Governor puts in all the Executive Orders. I've seen it going back for
years, the same paragraph. So we're anticipating an improvement of the land value, an improvement of
the area as opposed to ... I don't know what the word is ... a decline in the use of the area.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So tell us today, what is the difference because the veterans, our veterans
currently use the property under a current permit, S-4892, at gratis rent or free rent.
MR. COUCH: Right, it's month to month. It's a month-to-month rental. DLNR said that they can't do more
than a month to month, whereas if we were to get the land and then we have control of the land, we can
then grant more than a month-to-month lease. We can grant a multi-year lease. Again, it's the same
situation as, let's say, Puunene where nobody can make improvements to the area without assurances
that they have the area next month.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, I don't agree with that, but I understand what you just said. Now, the
last thing on the Exhibit, part of the remarks from the Land Board is that the County will seek the
concurrence of ... I'm assuming the Land Board, once the terms are prepared?
MR. COUCH: Correct. That's what, we usually do that. Again, that's standard language. We, we write a
letter to the Board and say, this is what we want ... this is the lease we want to do. Do you have any
problems with it? And then they come back and let us know. So far they haven't on other pieces of
property.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So is that done with just the Mayor? The County's requirement-MR. COUCH: Well, we send them the lease. They say yes or no, and then we bring that whole package that
you, the Council, has to, I believe, approve the lease. So it will come before you.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: The lease with the veterans?
MR. COUCH: Yes, that's my understanding that that has to happen. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, so it's something similar to the Old Lahaina Courthouse.
MR. COUCH: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Hokama. Committee Members, questions for Mr. Couch? Seeing
none, at this point, the Chair ... oops, sorry. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Couch, thank you for being here. I will note that this is on State
beach reserve land, which is public land for everybody's use. And I just want to clarify that while the
property above the high wash of the wave, is I'm assuming what would be included in the lease or the
agreement with the Veterans. You shook your head so I'm stopping.
MR. COUCH: Oh, okay. There's a separate TMK for that, the piece that we have. It is not included in the
beach reserve. It is surrounded by, or actually-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But it was initially part of the beach reserve.
MR. COUCH: Oh, a long time ago, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right, before they built on it.
MR. COUCH: In the early '60s, I'm assuming, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just want to make sure that there is open lateral access across the front of
this property.
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MR. COUCH: There currently is, and they, what we're leasing to them would be just the small ... I believe it's
about four-tenths of an acre. And whatever exists now, I believe to the north of that, people can go in
and, actually, people can go in through that property as well. But there is lateral access, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Great.
MR. COUCH: There's about a, I think it's about 400 feet, I don't know--Doug would know more--from the
end of their property to the beach. It's almost what? Three, three hundred feet.
MR. HALBERT: At least.
CHAIR MOLINA: Sir. Excuse me, Mr. Halbert, can you please come up to the lectern. Members, any
objections to Mr. Halbert from the VFW to respond to the question?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Thank you, Mr. Halbert. If you could, please state your name again for
the record.
MR. HALBERT: Thank you for allowing me to speak from the audience. There is access for the public to
either side of the fence that runs along the front of the property and that access is always open and we
always allow people to go to the beach, which is, of course, public access property. We do have a fence
across the property to keep people from driving cars in there. But the fence is not to prevent any
pedestrians from getting in there. Any other question on that subject? Or other subjects?
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Not for Mr. Harding. He might want to hang out in case Mr. Couch
doesn't have the answer.
CHAIR MOLINA: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just wondering how long a lease you guys intend to sign?
CHAIR MOLINA: Prior to the response, Mr. Halbert, you can go ahead and have a seat and ... (CHANGE
TAPE) ... we'll call upon you again. Thank you. Proceed, Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: I know the VFW has requested a long lease, about 35 years. We're probably looking at about
20, 20-year lease and that's up to the Council as well. We can always put a number in there, and the
Council can change that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you'll be coming back to the Council for the approval of the lease?
MR. COUCH: The approval of the lease, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. That's all I have, Mr. Chairman. I just did want to make a
comment that I hope that this allows them to upgrade their facilities. It's hard to put an investment in
property that you don't know you're going to have use of in the future. But my only concern is that, that
they try to share this property primarily with non-profits, and it's very tempting, the commercial
possibilities out there are great, especially with the wedding venue. This is one of the first venues I've
heard of on the shoreline where you could probably get away with having a wedding and a reception
without neighbors complaining, so it's valuable for that reason alone. And I think the fact that they're
only charging $200 for a wedding is pretty wonderful. So that would be my only concern that this
doesn't end up being a posh wedding venue. That it maintains its use for non-profit people.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Committee Members, any other questions for Mr. Couch?
Seeing none, at this point, the Chair's recommendation is a motion to support the proposed resolution to
accept the dedication of land.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Member Anderson, seconded by Member Pontanilla. Member
Anderson as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I think that just like the Puunene thing, if our people are using the land
and caretaking it, then we should have jurisdiction over it. And the VFW has done such a wonderful job
on this property that they deserve to have the lease in a long-term manner that allows them to go forward
and improve the property with some assurance that it'll be for their, their purposes in the future. So I'm
glad this was brought to us, and I support it.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson. Any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would move to amend the last point 3 under the "Resolved" clause.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: And on the last sentence, after "Public Works and Environmental
Management" we revise it to say, "and the Governor, State of Hawaii; and Members of the Maui County
Delegation to the Hawaii State Legislature."
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, there's been a motion to amend with the language proposed by Member Hokama. Is
there a second?
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been seconded by Member Pontanilla. Member Hokama, as the maker of the
amendment.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I would say that this would be appropriate, Chairman. One, it is an
Executive Order signed by the Governor herself. Also, I guess, maybe we might want to include the
Land Board since they would be the State department and agency that would help execute the final
approval. I think Members of the Maui County Legislature should be informed, one, because if there are
concerns and a State entity would like to terminate the agreement, it would go back to the Legislature
either by two-thirds vote of the House or Senate or majority vote of the, both bodies that could terminate
this lease agreement also. So I think it would be helpful to have our Maui County State Legislators
informed of this potential agreement, and, therefore, hopefully to continue to support our veterans' use
of public facilities.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Hokama. Any other discussion as to the proposed amendment
on the floor? Seeing none, all those in favor of the proposed amendment, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE
CHAIR MOLINA: Chair votes aye. It's unanimous.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Mateo, and Pontanilla, and
Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers
Vice=Chair Kane.

Carroll.

Johnson.

and

Tavares,

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

AMEND the main motion.

CHAIR MOLINA: We're now back to the main motion as amended. Any discussion? Seeing no discussion,
all those in favor, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
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CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Chair marks it unanimous. Thank you very much. The motion passes.
The property has been accepted by the County.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Mateo, and Pontanilla, and
Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers
Vice-Chair Kane.

Carroll,

Johnson,

and

Tavares,

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of revised resolution and FILING of communication.

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much to our members of the VFW for attending and giving your
participation, and we salute you all for your efforts. Thank you very much, Mr. Couch. Mr. Couch, you
might want to still be here and get comfortable. We have another item that we will need your input
from. Members, we're going to take a one-minute recess ... (gavel) ...

RECESS:

10:55 a.m.

RECONVENE:

11:00 a.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel) . .. Committee of the Whole meeting for June 28, 2005 is now back in session.

COW-2(10)

NOMINATIONS TO BOARDS, COMMITTEES, AND COMMISSIONS (VARIOUS)
(C.c. No. 05-20)

CHAIR MOLINA: Members, our next item of business is Committee of the Whole Item 2(10), nominations to
boards, committees, and commissions. Committee is in response or is in receipt, excuse me, of a
correspondence dated June 6, 2005 from the Mayor requesting consideration of the following
nominations. First, to the Cost of Government Commission, Buddy Duncan replacing Harvey Janis for
a term expiring on March 31, 2006; for the Council on Aging, Lydia Furomoto replacing Katherine
Burrows for a term expiring on March 31, 2006; and for the Subdivision Engineering Standards
Committee, Raymond Phillips replacing Allen Ai for a term expiring on March 31, 2008.
The Council must approve or disapprove these nominations by August 5, 2005 or the nominees will be
deemed approved. So at this point, the Chair would like to tum the microphone over to the Mayor's
Executive Assistant, Mr. Don Couch, for further elaboration of these considerations. Mr. Couch.
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MR. COUCH: Thank you, Chair. Regarding the Buddy Duncan, Mr. Janis had to resign and his term ends at
the end of next, basically at the end of this term here, which is March 31, 2006. Mr. Duncan requested
that he be on any committee where he's most needed, and we felt that this would be a good one for him
to at least get his feet wet if he wants to continue on.
As far as the Council on Aging, Ms. Furomoto specifically requested this Committee, so we obliged her
at the earliest opportunity. She's a citizen who decided to come forward and serve on the board.
As far as the Subdivision Engineering Standards Committee, Mr. Phillips is an architect who we felt
would be beneficial to this board even though an architect isn't required. This Committee meets I
believe about once a year. And Mr. Phillips volunteered to be on this Committee, so we certainly
appreciate his service and an architect would help on that Committee we feel.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, all right, thank you very much, Mr. Couch. Committee Members, any questions to
Mr. Couch regarding our nominees. Member Anderson and prior to recognizing Member Anderson,
Chair recognizes Council member Johnson for our proceedings today. Thank you for being here,
Member Johnson. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, in regards to Mr. Phillips, there's no political affiliation noted on his
application.
CHAIR MOLINA: Mr. Couch.
MR. COUCH: As far as we know, he has, I mean, I've never seen him at any functions-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... {inaudible} ...
MR. COUCH: I mean with a, with a, any kind of-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you find out prior to first reading on this, what his political
affiliation is? If he's Independent or Republican or Democrat?
MR. COUCH: Sure. I believe he put "none".
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, he put nothing. It's blank.
MR. COUCH: On mine, it says none. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: There's an update. There's a June 7 update.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: A June 7 update?
CHAIR MOLINA: There's a June 7 update. I believe he put "none".
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yeah. Should be in your binders, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, got it. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson.
nominees for Mr. Couch?

Members, any other questions regarding the

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just quickly one comment. I think we have some very good volunteers,
especially Ms. Furomoto, a retired schoolteacher. And I thank Mr. Phillips as well as Mr. Duncan for
their volunteerism to our greater community. But I would just request of Mr. Couch that those that
advised these boards and commissions that it would be helpful for them to share how we arrived at
certain points in time, and where they are today because of our unique history, and how we made
adjustments through the decades, and that what may work on the 48 states may not be applicable or
proper in Maui County.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Any other questions or comments regarding the
nominees? Hearing none, if there's no request for separation of the nominees, the Chair will ask for
consideration of a blanket motion for the support of the various nominees to the boards and commissions
listed on your agenda.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Second.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Member Hokama, seconded by Member Pontanilla.
Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Again, Chairman, I just thank the volunteers to donate their time and
attendance to serve the greater community.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Hokama. Any other discussion? Seeing none, all those in favor
of the motion on the floor, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.
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VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, and
Pontanilla, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll, and Tavares, and Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.

ACTION:

COW-24

APPROVAL of Buddy Duncan to the Cost of Government
Commission; Lydia Furomoto to the Council on Aging; and
Raymond Phillips to the Subdivision Engineering Standards
Committee.

SETTLEMENT OF CLAIMS AND OTHER CIVIL LITIGATION (C.C. No. 05-204)

CHAIR MOLINA: Moving on, Members, we're now on Item Number 24, which is the settlement of claims
and other civil litigation. Commission is in receipt of County Communication Number 05-204 from the
Corporation Counsel's Office, transmitting a proposed bill entitled, "A Bill for An Ordinance Amending
Section 3.16.020, Maui County Code, Relating to Settlement of Claims and Other Civil Litigation." The
purpose of the proposed bill is to amend Section 3.16.020 of the Maui County Code, relating to the
settlement of claims and other civil litigation, which includes the addition of language regarding the
settlement of workers' compensation claims.
From the Corporation Counsel's Office to now give us a brief overview of this matter, we have
Corporation Counsel Laureen Martin. Good morning, Ms. Martin.
MS. MARTIN: Good morning, Chairman Molina. The proposed amendment adds a Subsection specific to
workers' compensation settlements. The amendment permits the Mayor to enter into workers'
compensation settlements for an amount not to exceed the total of the rating for each body part, plus an
additional 2 percent residuals for each body part and up to $1,000 for disfigurement. If there is no
rating, the applicable limit is $7,500, which is the same for other claims. Unlike other claims or
lawsuits, workers' compensation settlements are generally based upon a rating. Once a rating is
completed, it is relatively certain that the claimant will receive an award of the rating amount. In
addition, the claimant is usually awarded 1 to 5 percentage points for residuals.
Also, unlike other claims and lawsuits, it is very difficult for an employer to deny liability by the time a
rating is completed. Currently, there are four pending workers' compensation settlements before
Council. If this amendment were to pass, only one of these settlements would need Council approval.
Full waiver cases or wash cases would still require Council approval.
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We recommend that the Council approve the proposed amendment.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Ms. Martin.
Member Anderson.

Committee Members, questions for Corporation Counsel?

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm just wondering what the current amount is.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. MARTIN: Chairman, the current amount is $7,500, the same as other claims.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If the current amount is $7,500, this is just to allow for--I don't see the
difference then. If you could please clarify for me.
CHAIR MOLINA: Corporation Counsel.
MS. MARTIN: Thank you, Chairman. There is a separate subsection, which would permit workers'
compensation settlements, and the amount is not a specific dollar amount. That would be based upon
the formula set out by statute based upon the rating, which we know the claimant would be entitled to by
law.
So in that way, it would restrict the Mayor and Corporation Counsel as to what we can give without
giving us a dollar amount. But it would also give us enough flexibility where we wouldn't have to be
coming down here to get approval from Council, for example, just a rating case. Let's say somebody
was rated at 5 percent but that's more than $7,500. So even if we're not giving them residuals or we're
not giving them extra, a few percentage points above that, we'd still have to come down there, come
down here to get approval.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson. Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. And would we be receiving any kind of notice or report
that informs us of all these settlements under this particular limit, for our own information.
MS. MARTIN: Chairman, I believe that Risk Management does submit a summary of the claims that have
been settled, so I believe that's included in that.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Mateo. Any other questions or concerns? Okay, seeing none,
Chair will entertain a motion to support the proposed bill, which is a settlement of claims and other civil
litigation.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Member Pontanilla, seconded by Member Johnson.
Member Pontanilla, as the maker of the motion, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No further discussion.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, Members, any other discussion? Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, I thank Corporation Counsel and Ms. Tavares for bringing up
this item. I don't support it. It's part of what I believe is our job and responsibility. I'm tired of passing
off to Administration our job, our responsibilities, and I, for one, believe it is important for us to do our
due diligence. And while I can appreciate the need to try and reduce the workload, I guess for the
Council, when it comes to claims and settlements, I take my job seriously. It's not the dollar amount
that is of concern to me. It is the application and consistency of how the County deals with its
employees. And so for my position, Mr. Chairman, with all due respect to you and my colleagues and
Corporation Counsel, I will not support this request.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, so noted, Member Hokama. Any other discussion? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I certainly respect, you know, the opinion of other Members. I think that
the way I'm looking at this is probably a little differently because I look at the recommendations that
Corporation Counsel ordinarily makes to us. And what gets so many times delayed in the whole process
is the fact that we're going to take their advice. Sometimes, you know, we may have questions or other
things, but I look at the person who's being impacted, which is the claimant. And if that claim can be
more expeditiously handled, create less stress on the employee who is directly involved, that's kind of
the way that I'm approaching it. I know that it is, let's say, our duty, our responsibility, but I think that
I've always respected Corporation Counsel's recommendations, too, because even Risk Management
makes the recommendation to us. We don't have the individual in front of us, so I guess it's sort of a
compromise. But I do support it because I think that ultimately I'm looking at trying to do the best job
for the employee. And this doesn't preclude, in my opinion, if there is a difficult situation, it wouldn't
preclude that situation being brought to the Council. This is just something that enables them to settle a
straight claim, but for those occasions where there's really uncertainty, that can still be brought before
this Council. So I, I respect other people's opinions but that's kind of the way I'm looking at it. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Johnson. Any other comments from the body? The Chair feels
comfortable with the proposal. I still believe because of the report that we do get from the Risk
Manager's office, anyone of us can take the opportunity to I guess make any inquiries if there are any
possible issues that may surround any proposed settlement. So at this point, that is your Chair's
comments. And, again, the motion on the floor is to consider the amending of Section 3.16.020 of the
Maui County Code, which relates to settlement of claims and other civil litigation. Member Hokama.
- 38-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Just one last, my last opportunity, Chairman, to speak on the motion. I
understand that we will have a report from the Risk Management office, but the bottom line is the case
has been settled. We wouldn't be able to reopen it. We have settlement. We have agreement. We have
execution of documents. It's past tense to me. If there is a concern, it must be addressed prior to the
settlement. And so, again, Chairman, with all respect to all of you who may differ from my, my
position, thank you for my final opportunity.
CHAIR MOLINA: Chair has a question for Corporation Counsel. Is there some way or mechanism where we
could at least get sort of a head's up on any cases? Sort of a: report before the report, the finalized report.
So in the event a Member would have some concerns regarding a proposed settlement?
MS. MARTIN: Chairman, I, although I could provide some information, it would probably be difficult to
provide the specifics because of the medical issues involved with that. But, as far as the amounts,
workers' compensation is quite different than a regular settlement. We know that this individual, nine
times out of ten, probably 99 times out of a 100, will get that rating. They're entitled to it. So if the
County doesn't settle, they go to the Department of Labor, they will get that rating, and they will
probably get at least a few percentage points. So it's quite different than a normal case where somebody
brings a lawsuit and we can deny liability and we can, maybe we could take it to trial and win.
Ninety-nine percent of the time, once it gets to that rating, we know they're entitled to it. So it's quite
different than a regular lawsuit.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Members, any other discussions or questions relating to the motion on
the floor?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: One question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: So you definitely can be way above the $7,500 you're talking about? Could
be $100,000 for all we know, depend on what that 2 percent is of the total settlement amount?
MS. MARTIN: Chairman, it all depends upon the rating-COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right.
MS. MARTIN: --which is performed by a doctor, which we helped to select. So, yes, it could be quite high,
depending upon the person's rating.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Right, right. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Hokama. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Now I'm confused again. So even though it's quite high, if it's over
$7,500 it comes to us?
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: No.
MS. MARTIN: No. No, it's all based upon the rating because we know the person is entitled to the rating. So
if the rating is high, you plug it into the formula, which is settled by statute and we know the claimant is
entitled to. If it's above $7,500, it would still be approved, as long as we weren't giving them more than
2 percentage points.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see.
CHAIR MOLINA: Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, than I, too ... I, too, have a question because the memo I'm
reading indicates, ". . . authorize the Mayor and Corporation Counsel to settle claims not involving
payment in excess of $7,500." So where is this open-ended bill?
MS. MARTIN: Chairman, that letter I believe refers to the previous Committee meeting where the ordinance
was amended to $7,500, and this is when this discussion took place. There was some discussion about
having another amendment for, specifically for workers' compensation. Because most of the workers'
compensation cas~s are not going to fall below the $7,500 just based upon even a small rating. And so
that was discussed. I know Member Tavares had supported that amendment and because of the time
constraints with budget, it was decided to wait until budget was completed. So that, the letter is just
referring to that discussion at that time when the amount was raised to $7,500.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Mateo. Members, any other questions? Okay, Chair will
conduct the vote. All those in favor, signify by saying aye. All those opposed. Okay, we have three
ayes, three noes. The matter is deadlocked, the motion fails.

VOTE:

AYES:

Councilmembers Johnson, and Pontanilla, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Mateo, and Hokama.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll, and Tavares, and Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION FAILED.
CHAIR MOLINA: Staff, the matter now will be deferred because of a tie vote. Am I correct in stating that?
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MS. KA W ASAKI: You could choose to file it if you wanted to, or you may defer it. And the item would
remain alive.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay. We did have one Member who asked for consideration of this matter when we last
met on this issue. Well, when we discussed the, raising the ceiling of the proposed settlements. So out
of consideration for that, the Chair has a preference to defer the matter. Any objections to deferral?
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
I have no objections, Mr. Chair, and I think in all fairness,
Member Tavares should be here. And I'm wondering if next time we bring this up we could maybe
have an executive session so we could speak more freely about this. I don't know if it's necessary, but I
would like to have more information before I make a final decision on this.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Anderson. I think that is a good suggestion. The Chair will take
that into consideration. Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Chairman, just as a sharing of information, currently, the County of Kauai is
taking, in circuit court, actions against Office of Information Practices, specifically regarding the use of
executive session. We have practiced that option and use, as State statute allows us, but within narrow
and consistent parameters. And so if there is matters that would qualify, then, of course, by all means,
the body may consider it. But just to enter into executive session, I believe would jeopardize or, again, I
have no idea where this lawsuit is going that is in Kauai Circuit Court at this time. But I just wish to
share that, that it is a concern from OIP, and its possible ruling by the judge may also impact us
negatively. And so I would just ask us that we just be aware and any considerations of executive session
be able to be substantiated and justified by anyone that has oversight on these matters. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you for that information, Mr. Hokama. Any other questions or issues related to the
matter? And the matter is being deferred and the Chair will try to bring that matter up as soon as
possible, especially when Member Tavares gets back to get her feedback.
Okay, Members, with that being said, Item Number 24 has been deferred.

ACTION:
COW-4(3)

DEFER pending further discussion.

(Excused: DK, RC, & CT)

INDEMNIFICATION AUTHORIZATION (DONALD KAULIA VS. COUNTY OF MAUl, ET
AL., CIVIL NO. CV05-00290 DAE LEK) (C.C. No. 05-23)

CHAIR MOLINA: We have one last item to discuss, Members, and that is Committee of the Whole Item
Number 4(3), which is the indemnification authorization, Donald Kaulia versus County of Maui, et al.
The Committee is in receipt of a correspondence dated June 16, 2005 from the Department of the
- 41 -

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2005

Corporation Counsel, requesting consideration of a resolution which is entitled, "Indemnifying James
Apana, David Goode, Grant Chun, Dennis Schwind, Ron Riska, Tracy Takamine, Allen Souza, and
John Kostrick, in Civil Number CVOS-00290 DAE LEK, Donald Kaulia versus County of Maui,
Department of Public Works and Waste Management, et al." The complaint in this matter alleges civil
rights violations and employment discrimination, and the purpose of the proposed bill is to indemnify
the individuals just named.
A proposed, what's up for, also under consideration is a second proposed resolution entitled,
"Indemnifying James Apana, David Goode, Grant Chun, Dennis Schwind, Ron Riska, Tracy Takamine,
and Allen Souza, in Civil Number CVOS-00290 DAE LEK, Donald Kaulia versus County of Maui,
Department of Public Works and Waste Management, et al." And the complaint in this matter alleges
civil rights violations and employment discrimination. And the purpose of the proposed bill, again, is to
indemnify James Apana, David Goode, Grant Chun, Dennis Schwind, Ron Riska, Tracy Takamine, and
Allen Souza, current and former County employees for any damages that may be assessed against them
in the referenced lawsuit.
So from the Corporation Counsel's Office, we have Cheryl Tipton to give us an overview of the matter,
and from the Public Works Department, we have Director Milton Arakawa, as well as
ML Tracy Takamine from the Wastewater Division. We'll go first with Ms. Tipton to give us the
overview.
MS. TIPTON: Thank you, Chair Molina and Members of the Committee. On April 22, 2005, a lawsuit was
filed by Donald Kaulia who was an employee of the County until couple of years ago. It was filed in
U.S. District Court in Honolulu alleging that Mr. Kaulia was subjected to employment discrimination
and violations of his civil rights. It was based on his color and based on retaliation.
The lawsuit also names eight current and former employees individually and the Council is being asked
to indemnify these individuals. Because of the legal defenses and strategy of the case that might be
discussed, I would ask that this matter be taken up in executive session.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Ms. Tipton. Committee Members, any questions in open session for
Corporation Counselor the Public Works Department?
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR MOLINA: Member Hokama.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: I just bring up the June 16, 2005 letter from Ms. Tipton as one of our
counselors stating that the recommendation be for all individuals, with the exception of Mr. Kostrick,
and yet in the resolution, he's still part of the consideration. Is there something in open session you are
allowed to share with us that could explain this?
MS. TIPTON: There, there are two resolutions that are being submitted for the consideration of the Committee.
One would be for all individually named defendants. The second resolution would be for all, but
Mr. Kostrick, and I believe it's more appropriate to explain that in executive session. Basically, the
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specific allegations of comments made that might have been discriminatory were alleged to be attributed
to Mr. Kostrick.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, thank you, Member Hokama. Any other questions in open session for Corporation
Counselor the Department? Seeing none, the Chair will entertain a motion at this time to convene an
executive session meeting for Committee of the Whole Item 4(3), pursuant to HRS 92-S(a)(4), to consult
with legal counsel on questions and issues pertaining to the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and
liabilities of the County, the Council, and the Committee.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So moved.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Member Pontanilla, seconded by Member Hokama.
discussion? Seeing no discussion, all those in favor, signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. The Chair will mark it unanimous.

VOTE:

A YES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Hokama, Johnson, Mateo, and
Pontanilla, and Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers Carroll, and Tavares, and Vice-Chair Kane.

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

EXECUTIVE SESSION.
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CHAIR MOLINA: Members, we'll recess to set up the Chambers for the executive session meeting. We shall
reconvene shortly ... .(gavel) . . .(CHANGE TAPE) ...
RECESS:

11:25 a.m.

(THE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING ENTERED INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION AT
11:27 A.M. AND ENDED AT 12:15 P.M.)
RECONVENE:

12:16 p.m.

CHAIR MOLINA: ... (gavel). .. Committee of the Whole meeting for June 28, 2005 has now reconvened.
Thank you very much, Members, for the time needed for executive session with respect to Item
Committee, Item Number, Committee of the Whole Item 4(3), which is the indemnification
authorization of Donald Kaulia versus County of Maui, et al.
Upon the recommendations or suggestions made, at this point the Chair would like the body to consider
working off of the first proposed resolution, if there's no objections. And the Chair will entertain a
motion to approve the first resolution as proposed.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So moved.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, it's been moved by Member Pontanilla. Is there a second?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Second.
CHAIR MOLINA: Seconded by Member Mateo. Any comments as it relates to the motion in open session?
Member Pontanilla?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I'll yield to the floor.
CHAIR MOLINA: Okay, any other discussion as it relates to the motion? Seeing none, all those in favor,
signify by saying aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED AYE.
CHAIR MOLINA: All those opposed? Thank you. Chair will mark it unanimous.

- 44-

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE
Council of the County of Maui

June 28, 2005

VOTE:

A YES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Johnson, Mateo, and Pontanilla, and
Chair Molina.

NOES:

None.

ABSTAIN:

None.

ABSENT:

None.

EXC.:

Councilmembers
Vice-Chair Kane.

Carroll,

Hokama,

and

Tavares,

and

MOTION CARRIED.
ACTION:

ADOPTION of resolution entitled "INDEMNIFYING JAMES
APANA, DAVID GOODE, GRANT CHUN, DENNIS SCHWIND,
RON RISKA, TRACY TAKAMlNE, ALLEN SOUZA, AND
JOHN KOSTRICK, IN CIVIL NO. CVOS-00290 DAE LEK,
DONALD KAULIA VS. COUNTY OF MAUl, DEPARTMENT
OF PUBLIC WORKS AND WASTE MANAGEMENT, ET AL.".

CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you very much, Members. This brings to a close our Committee of the Whole
meeting for June 28, 2005. The Chair would like to thank you all for your participation. Are there any
announcements? Member Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, all of the Members are invited to the Maui Long-Term Care meeting,
if you have no luncheon plans. They are getting together over at Maui Beach Hotel. So everyone is
invited, and I'm assuming that Committee of the Whole Item 15 was already dealt with.
CHAIR MOLINA: Yes, we dealt with that earlier., There were some Members had to go-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR MOLINA: --to another address, but the Item did pass successfully.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, not a problem. Thank you.
CHAIR MOLINA: Thank you, Member Johnson. And, by the way, the Chair would like to wish a belated
birthday to Member Johnson. Happy birthday to you. And, with that being said, if no other
announcements, Committee of the Whole meeting for June 28,2005 is now adjourned.
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ADJOURN: 12:18 p.m.

~

MICHAEL J. MOLINA, Chair
Committee of the Whole

Transcribed by:

cQw:min:050628
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